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ADDENDUM No. 1 TO ORIGINAL INVITATION TO BID 

Date: March 8, 2023 

Bid No.: Invitation to Bid (ITB) 5733-2023 Sabal Palm Elementary School, Building 1 Roof Restoration and Buildings 2, 3, 4, 
7 and 8 Roof Replacements 

Bid Opening March 17, 2023 @ 2:00 P.M. EST (Addendum does not change the opening date of the bid) 

This addendum is being issued to make the following changes, corrections, clarifications and additions to the bidding 
document. The information in this addendum modifies and changes the original bidding document and takes precedence 
over the original document.  

Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed in Section 120.57(3), Florida Statutes, or failure to post the bond or other 
security required by law within the time allowed for filing a bond shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under Chapter 120, 
Florida Statutes. 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

This Addendum includes the following revisions: 

Change No. 1:  

A revision to Instructions to Bidders and Scope of Work Section V(F)(c). is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced 
with the following:

c. Installer Qualifications: Company specializing in performing Work of this section with minimum five years
documented experience.

This Addendum provides the Board’s written answers to the timely written questions received: 

Question Answer 
1. Please provide a copy of the sign-in sheet A copy of the pre-bid sign in sheet is attached as Exhibit 2 
2. Please provide pictures and info related to cores

and moisture scans that were performed on the
buildings.

A copy of Thermography Report Sabal 2.16.2023 is 
attached as Exhibit 3 

3. What is the current budget for the project? This is a hard bid therefore there is not a defined budget 
4. Subsection c on page 11 of the ITB states that the

installer must be a certified Preapproved Garland
Contractor. Is Garland the only approved
manufacturer?

See Change No. 1 above 

5. Can we use foam adhesive in lieu of hot asphalt to
adhere the system where applicable?

Low rise foam adhesive is acceptable 

6. Please provide specification for the extruded
aluminum downspouts required for bldg. #8.

A copy of the specification for the extruded aluminum 
downspouts required for bldg. #8 is attached as Exhibit 4 

7. No plans/drawings were included in the download.
will these be forthcoming?

The respondent awarded the invitation to bid will be 
responsible for providing plans/drawings 
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8. If no, can, at a minimum, a site drawing be 
provided showing locations of Buildings work is to 
be performed: Buildings 1, 2, 3, 4, 7, and 8? 

 

A copy of the Sabal Palm Site Plan is attached 
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Mandatory Pre-Bid Conference  
LEON COUNTY SCHOOL BOARD 

Invitation to Bid (ITB) Bid 5733-2023 
Sabal Palm Elementary School, Building 1 Roof Restoration and 

Buildings 2, 3, 4, 7 and 8 Roof Replacements Project 
Wednesday, February 22, 2023 at 9:30 a.m. 

 
 
 

 Company Name 
(Please Print Clearly) 

Name 
(Please Print Clearly) 

Telephone Number 
(Please Print Clearly) 

Email Address 
(Please Print Clearly) 

 
21.     

22.     

23.     

24.     

25.     

26.     

27.     

28.     

29.     

30.     
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Elevated Images of the Tri-State Area 

Roof Thermal Inspection 
Date:2.16.2023 

Weather Conditions: Mostly Sunny High Temperature of 75 degrees 

Address: 2813 Ridgeway Street, Tallahassee, Florida 

Customer Name: Leon County Schools 

Thermal Image Equipment: DJI Mavic 2 Pro Dual 

Roof Age: Unknown 

Roof Area Inspected: Roof Areas 1,2,3,4,7 

Estimated Wet Area: Less than 25% 

Roofing Material Inspected: Modified Bitumen 

About Thermal Inspections 

Wetness issues are detected with thermal imagers primarily in two ways. The first method takes advantage of wet 
materials retaining heat longer than most dry construction materials. This means that water soaked material will 
retain heat and dissipate heat more slowly than dry material. Therefore, if a roof is inspected in the early evening 
after it has been heated by the sun all day, signs of possible roof wetness will be apparent with a thermal camera 
because the insulation that has been exposed to moisture will appear warmer than the surrounding dry areas. The 
second method utilizes the principles of evaporative cooling. When water evaporates, it cools the material it is in 
contact with. Therefore, water soaked material that is exposed to the same ambient temperatures as the 
surrounding material without solar loading, will appear cooler if the water has been evaporating.  

Thermal images can be shown in several different color pallets. The most common color pallets where brighter colors 
are hot and darker colors are cold. The pallets allow images displayed in scale and the isolated temperature range.  

Per ASTM C1153-10 section 13.1.1 verification of moisture detected should be carried out by invasive 
testing methods: Cores, or core and moisture meter probes. 

Thermography testing is a non-invasive method to isolate the area’s most likely to be problematic to the roof 
system. Failure to conduct core verification may result in false positives. 
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Roof Plan 
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